DATE:
LOCATION:

TIME:

2:00 PM

Cape Light Compact
Executive Committee &
Governing Board Meeting

Thursday, February 13, 2020

Cape Light Compact Offices — MV Conference Room
261 Whites Path, Unit 4, South Yarmouth

2:00 - 4:30 p.m.

AGENDA

Public Comment
Barry Margolin, Chair of 350 Cape Cod

Approval of Minutes

Chairman’s Report, Ron Zweig
1. Staff to Provide Brief Explanation of the SMART Tariff

2020 Operating and Energy Efficiency Budget Reports, Peter Cocolis

Presentation on Proposed Cape & Vineyard Electrification Offering (CVEQ), Austin Brandt
Proposed 2020 Main Streets Offering for Small Businesses, Lindsay Henderson

Overview of 2020 CLC Marketing Videos and 2018 Annual Report, Dan Schell

Overview of Proposed Senate Legislation on Climate Change, Jeff Bemstein
Administrator’s Report, Maggie Downey:

1. Update on DPU 19-136, 2020 Energy Efficiency Surcharge

2. Finalize list of questions for Eversource’s on their December presentation to the Board
3. Update on DPU 18-116, Active Demand Reduction Offering

Board Member Update (Reserved for Updates on Member Activities the Chair Did Not
Reasonably Anticipate Would be Discussed — No Voting)



Dralt Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

Cape Light Compact JPE
Governing Board
Meeting Minutes

Wednesday, January 8, 2020

The Cape Light Compact JPE Board of Directors met on Wednesday, January 8, 2020 in the Martha’s Vineyard
Conference Room at the Cape Light Compact JPE Offices at 261 Whites Path, Yarmouth MA 02664 at 2:00
PM.

Present Were:

Peter Doyle, Alternate, Barnstable

Robert Schofield, Executive Committee, Bourne

Colin Odell, Brewster

Peter Cocolis, Executive Committee, Chatham

Brad Crowell, Dennis

Erik Peckar, Dukes County — By Phone

Alan Strahler, Edgartown

Ronald Zweig, Chair/Executive Committee, Falmouth

9. Valerie Bell, Harwich

10. Richard Toole, Executive Committee, Qak Bluffs — By Phone
11. Martin Culik, Executive Committee, Orleans

12. Nathaniel Mayo, Provincetown

13. Richard Elkin, Wellfleet

14. Sue Hruby, West Tisbury

15. Joyce Flynn, Vice Chair/Executive Committee, Yarmouth

I

Absent Were:

Michael Hebert, Aquinnah

David Anthony, Secretary/Executive Committee, Barnstable
Timothy Carroll, Chilmark

Fred Fenlon, Eastham

Wayne Taylor, Mashpee

Leanne Drake, Sandwich

Kirk Metell, Tisbury

Jarrod Cabral, Truro

PN B W

Members/Alternates:
Physically present: 13
Present by phone: 2

Legal Counsel:
Jeffrey Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, P.C. — By Phone

Staff Present:

Austin Brandt, Senior Power Supply Planner

Dan Schell, Marketing and Communications Coordinator
Maggie Downey, Administrator

Cupe Liviy Compoct Evecative Conmmittee & Geverning Bouid
Janware 8 2020 Meeting Minues



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

Margaret Song, C&I Program Manager

Megan Terrio, Comptroller

Melissa Allard, Senior Administrative Coordinator

Mona Boumghait, Massachusetts Maritime Academy Intern
Phil Moffit, Planning and Evaluation Manager

Public Present:
None.

Ronald Zweig called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. Ronald Zweig recognized Erik Peckar of Dukes County
and Richard Toole of Oak Bluffs who were remotely participating because physical attendance at the meeting
would be unreasonably difficult.

PuBLIC COMMENT:

Therc was no public comment.

Ron Zweig introduced the Compact’s Massachusetts Maritime Academy Intern, Mona Boumghait. She will be
working with the Compact until the end of February.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The Board considered the December 11, 2019 Open Session Meeting Minutes.

Sue Hruby stated that at the top of page three she doesn’t think she said, “transfer stations.” Maggie Downey
asked if she thought stating “that many solar panels have been installed throughout the Cape and Vineyard” was
consistent with her remarks. Sue Hruby answered yes.

Martin Culik moved the Board to accept the minutes as amended and to release them as amended, seconded by
Robert Schofield.

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole Oak Bluffs Abstained
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes
Joyce Flynn Yarmouth Yes

Cupre Light Compact Executive Conmnittee & Governing Board
Junmar 8, 2020 Meeting: Mimey



Draft Minutes subject to correction. addition and Committee/Board Approval
Motion carried in the affirmative (14-0-1)

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT:

1. Elections for 2020 Officers

Maggie Downey asked if there were any nominations for Chair. Martin Culik nominated Ronald Zweig.
Seconded by Peter.

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole Oak Bluffs Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes
Joyce Flynn Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (13-0-0)

Maggie Downey asked if there were any nominations for Vice Chair. Peter Cocolis nominated Joyce Fi lynn,
Seconded by Valerie Bell.

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole Oak Bluffs Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes
Joyce Flynn Yarmouth Yes
Cupe Light Compact Excenrive Cosmmitioe & Governing Board

Jusary 8 2020 Moeetins Minnges




Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

Maggie Downey asked if there were any nominations for Secretary. Peter Cocolis nominated David Anthony.
Seconded by Robert Schofield

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole QOak Bluffs Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes
Joyce Flynn Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

Maggie Downey asked if there were any nominations for the position of Treasurer. Ronald Zyweig nominated

Glivinski and Associates, Inc. Seconded by Sue Hruby.

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole Oak Bluffs Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes
Joyce Flynn Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

Cape Light Compact Evecurive Commitioe & Govering Bourd
Juntany 8, 2020 Meeune Minnes




Maggie Dovwney asked if there were any nominations for the position of Business Officer. Jovce Flvan
Y ! / '}

Dralt Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

nominated Megan Terrio. Seconded by Richard Elkin.

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole Qak Bluffs Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes
Joyce Flynn Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

2. Elections for 2020 Executive Committee

Maggie Downey asked that if there were any nominations for the officer seats on the Executive Committee
members beyond the Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer and Business Officer nominations. She stated that
Peter Cocolis, Richard Elkin, Martin Culik, and Robert Schofield were nominated at the previous Board
Meeting,

There were no new nominations. Ron Zweig moved the entire slate of Peter Cocolis, Richard Elkin, Martin

Culik, and Robert Schofield . Seconded by Joyce Flynn.

Peter Doyle Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Peter Cocolis Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Erik Peckar Dukes County | Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Ronald Zweig Falmouth Yes
Valerie Bell Harwich Yes
Richard Toole Oak Bluffs Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Richard Elkin Wellfleet Yes
Sue Hruby West Tisbury Yes

Cupe Lighn Compact Executive Commitioe & Genernmne Biwed
Junary 52020 Meenne Minutes




Drafi Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

| Joyce | Flynn | Yarmouth | Yes |

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)
3. Questions for Eversource from Last Month’s Meeting

Maggie Downey asked the Board what it would like to do about the questions that were not answered during
Eversource’s presentation during the last meeting. Richard Eikin stated that the Compact should send
Eversource the questions and then set up a time to have them present their answers to the Board. Colin Odell
stated that he would like to get the answers before the Board Meeting to see if more information is needed. Ron
Zweig asked if Board Members could add questions. Maggie Downey stated that she will send the list of
questions to the Board and if anyone wants to add any they can email her back.

OVERVIEW OF 2019 OPERATING AND EFFICIENCY BUDGETS, PETER COCOLIS:

Peter Cocolis stated that the Compact’s spending is under budget for both the Energy Efficiency and Operating
Budgets. Peter Cocolis stated that 81% of the Energy Efficiency Budget has been spent. There is about $5
million in invoices that are still pending. Maggie Downey stated that once the invoices are processed the
Compact would have spent between 95-97% of the Energy Efficiency Budget. Peter Cocolis stated that 68% of
the Operating Budget has been spent based on invoices received as of today’s meeting date. There are also
some outstanding invoices to be paid under the Operating Budget.

Maggie Downey stated that at the March Board Meeting the Compact will present the year end data along with
the saving goals. Richard Elkin asked what the headers stand for. Phil Moffit stated that “EMV” stands for
Evaluation, Measurement and Verification, “STAT?” stands for Sales, Technical Assistance and Training, and
“PP&A” stands for Program Planning and Administration. Maggie Downey stated that these terms are defined
by the Department of Public Utilities (“DPU”) and the DPU determined how the reports would be laid out.

Richard Elkin asked where the $5 million in outstanding Energy Efficiency invoices are coming from. Phil
Moffit stated that $5 million in vendor invoices have been submitted, reviewed by appropriate staff, but have
not yet been entered into the Compact’s energy efficiency database. Richard Elkin asked if there are any other
invoices that haven’t come in. Maggie Downey stated that each of the program managers know what is still
outstanding. All 2019 vendor invoices are due by January 15",

Peter Cocolis reviewed the Power Supply Fund Balance Analysis worksheet. The total mil-adder revenue for
2019 is $900,220.02. The interest income from January through November 2019 is $15,200.65. The operating
expenditures year to date is $600,399.50. Peter Cocolis, referring to the handout, then asked what the interfund
transfers ($29,070.00) are. Maggie Downey stated that it is the money, previously approved by the Board, that
was used for solar PV projects with Habitat for Humanity. The fund balance at the end of 2019 is
$1,135,631.31. After the 2020 Operating Budget is appropriated, the unallocated fund balance is $265,805.75.

Peter Cocolis stated that the Reserve Fund could be used for legal if needed. Maggie Downey stated that it
could be used to reduce power supply rates but the Compact would need a bit more in the fund before having an
impact on rates. Richard Elkin asked what the difference is between a reserve fund and free cash. Peter Cocolis
stated that the Reserve Fund was established by a vote of the Board and these funds could be appropriated for
unforeseen expenses as further approved by the Board. Free cash is funds that have not been appropriated by
the Board. Colin Odell stated there are plenty of references for how the reserve fund can be used with a vote of
the Board. The Compact would not have to go back to using free cash if the $250,000 Reserve Fund is fully

{1
Cupe Light Compact Executive Conmiitice & Governing Bourd
Jdannary 8, 2020 Meoting Mimes



Dralt Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

funded. Richard Elkin asked why not fully fund the Reserve Fund now. Maggie Downey stated that the Board
could do a budget amendment to fund the $250,000 reserve fund in 2020. Colin Odell stated that this would be
an appropriale topic after 2019 balances have been closed. Maggie Downey stated that the Compact can bring it
back for the April Board Meeting.

Discussion OF OTHER PoST EMPLOYMENT (“OPEB”) AND RETIREMENT LIABILITIES:

Maggie Downey stated that the Compact has been allocating funds for its OPEB liability since 2016. Allocation
is based on payroll. It will be fully funded within the next four years or less. Free cash could fund some of it.
Richard Elkin asked why there is such a decrease in Retirement Liability from 2017 to 2018. Maggie Downey
stated that the Compact funded what was appropriated each year. The Compact is proposing to put the liabilities
into a trust as permitted by Massachusetts General Laws,

Richard Elkin asked about putting it into a trust. Maggie Downey stated that it will be discussed at the March
Board Meeting. Valerie Bell asked if the Compact is separated from Barnstable County Retirement Association.
Maggie Downey stated that the Compact is a member of Barnstable County Retirement Association. However,
it has its own actuarial and liability accounts. Valerie Bell asked if employees contribute. Maggie Downey
stated employees contribute 11% of their salary each pay period. Richard Elkin asked how old the actuarial
analysis is. Maggie Downey stated that it was done in 2019.

UPDATE ON PROPOSED CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIFICATION OFFERING (“CVEO”), AUSTIN BRANDT:

Austin Brandt reviewed the Proposed Cape & Vineyard Electrification Offering PowerPoint. He stated that
the Compact is in the process of finalizing its budget. Once that is done it will be sent to the Energy Efficiency
Advisory Council (“EEAC”). If it approves the program it will then be sent to the DPU for its review and
approval.

Peter Cocolis stated that even some people who are making 81% or higher than the state median income are
also struggling. Austin Brandt stated that that is true. However, this time around the Compact is focusing on
people more in need. Austin Brandt stated that only single-family homes are eligible for the program. Richard
Elkin stated that, in his opinion, not serving low-income customers in multifamily establishments may be
biasing the statistics. Maggie Downey stated that the initial offering is for single family, deed restricted homes
(homes restricted for income eligible individuals). They can be rental properties. Austin Brandt stated that it is
difficult to install solar on multimeter multifamily homes and be able to have it benefit the customer. Maggie
Downey stated that the Compact will investigate using Department of Housing and Community Development
(*DHCD”) funds and working with towns on new low-income construction.

Maggie Downey stated that the program is designed to pursue the goals of 2018 amendments to the Green
Communities Act, strategic electrification, storage and renewable technology. Heat pumps are highly efficient,
but for low-income customers their electric bill can be a burden. That is why the Compact proposes to install
solar and storage as well to reduce total energy bills. Martin Culik asked how much it will cost. Austin Brandt
stated that it will cost $50,000 for the solar and storage. The cost of heat pumps has not yet been determined.
Richard Elkin stated that it sounds high. Maggie Downey stated that the Compact uses the Massachusetts Clean
Energy Center data. Richard Elkin stated that the data is old.

Valerie Bell asked if there was any net metering credits involved. Austin Brandt stated that the projects will be
will not be eligible for Solar RECs because that program has been replaced by Solar Massachusetts Renewable
Target (SMART). Richard Elkin asked if Sola Massachusetts SMART was included. Austin Brandt answered

Cupe Light Compact Evecative Committee & Covernne Bourd
Juvmary &, 2020 Moeening Minues



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

yes. Austin Brandt stated that the Compact is looking into the revenue from the clean peak standards, but there
is very little information available at this time on pricing. He stated that the Compact estimated costs based on
the best available information. As with all energy efficiency programs, anything that isn’t spent on the program
is fully reconciled through the DPU the following year. Richard Elkin asked if SMART requires the homes to
be deed restricted. Austin Brandt answered no. Ron Zweig asked if ownership will revert to the customer if'it's
a deed restriction house if the customer were to sell their house. Austin Brandt stated that it becomes the
owner’s asset. Margaret Song stated that with the deed restriction it makes it so the house can only be sold to a
customer within a certain defined income bracket.

Maggie Downey stated that the program is addressing how low-income customers are already paying for all
those who already have solar. Colin Odell asked if the Compact would go out to negotiate for heat pumps as it
has done for solar. Austin Brandt stated that the Compact will go out to bid for heat pumps too and will select
one or two installers. It will be competitively procured.

Brad Crowell stated that this program has been designed to get through the DPU, but not to solve all of the
social problem. Austin Brandt stated that the Compact is trying to also solve the social problem as well. Richard
Elkin stated that there are other factors such as trees surrounding a home and therefore solar can’t be installed.
Austin Brandt stated yes, there are many factors to take into consideration. Colin Odell asked if there is a Third-
Party Owner (“TPO”) for the heat pump portion of the program. Austin Brandt answered no.

Martin Culik stated that this program is going to be in high demand and is a monumental marketing piece.
Austin Brandt stated that the marketing will be 1argeted since the Compact can only serve 250 customers. The
Compact doesn’t want to cause an issue by having to turn away a lot of people. Marketing will be done through
the Towns, Habitat of Humanity and other nonprofit housing organizations. Sue Hruby stated that it will be a
great marketing piece once it is finished.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT, MAGGIE DOWNEY:

1. Update on DPU 19-136, 2020 Energy Efficiency Surcharge

Maggie Downey stated that the Compact has provided the DPU with requested information on shared costs such
as documentation for rent, salary, benefits, etc. The issue of shared costs is an open item at the DPU; Maggie
Downey will keep the Board updated as new information is presented.

2. Review Documents Sent to CLC Board

Maggie Downey stated she emailed out the following documents: Summary of Conflict of Interest Law for
Municipal Employees, Office of the Attorney General: Open Meeting Law Guide and Educational Materials,
Office of the Attorney General: 940 CMR: Open Meetings, and Office of the Inspector General: How to be an
Effective Board Member of the Public Board or Commission. She stated that there are two signature pages that
need to be signed and returned to her on the Open Meeting Law and Conflict of Interest documents.

3. Review Annual Meeting Attendance Requirements
Maggie Downey stated that she’ll be reviewing Board Members’ attendance for the year. Martin Downey stated

there are a few towns whose board members haven’t been present at any Board Meetings. Maggie Downey
stated that Aquinnah said it would submit the required attendance waiver letter. Valerie Bell stated that maybe

Cupe Light Compact Lvecitive Committee & Governing Bourd
gy 8, 2020 Mecting Minurey



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

the Board can meet on the Vineyard once a year. Maggie Downey stated that she would be happy to, but the
Compact has tried this before and there was not a good turnout.

Richard Elkin asked if the Compact could get around the open meeting law when it comes to getting around the
rule about Board Members having to be physically present. Maggie Downey stated that she doesn’t think there
is a way to get around it. Jeffrey Bernstein stated that as a JPE, the Compact could seck legislative or other
authorization but under current law, remote participation did not count for quorum purposes under the Open
Meeting Law. Maggie Downey stated that even getting the Vineyard towns to participate remotely would help
with the Compact’s internal attendance requirements.

4. 350.0rg Asked to Present to Board at February Meeting

Maggie Downey stated that 350.0rg has asked to come and present to the Board in February. She stated that she
had discussed with members of 350.org that Board Members wouldn’t be able to vote on anything unless given
permission from their town.

Brad Crowell stated that unfortunately the topic has become very political and the Compact is not a political
advocacy group. He believed that it could cause potential problems. Sue Hruby stated that the Vineyard has its
own version of 350.org. She also stated that it could take up a lot of time during the Board Meeting. Nate Mayo
stated that he would like to hear what they are trying to do at a municipal level and finds it appropriate to the
Compact. Maggie Downey stated that they did ask if the Compact could advocate/lobby and she informed them
that they could not lobby and a vote in support would have to be discussed with their appointing authority/town.
Members of 350.orgh would like 1o present to the Board. Brad Crowell stated that they could talk during public
comment. Colin Odell stated that then it would keep it out of the part of the meeting where the Board would
need to comment or vote. Maggie Downey stated she will let them know that they can speak only during public
comment. Nate Mayo asked if the time for them to speak during public comment could be extended. Maggie
Downey answered yes as long as approved by the Chair.

5. Select Board Meetings

Maggie Downey stated that the Compact is setting up times to meet with each town’s Select Board/Town
Council. She stated that Melissa Allard will send along a calendar invite when the date has been set.

ADJOURNMENT:

Motion to adjourn made at 4:06 PM moved by Peter Cocolis, seconded by Colin Odell.
Respectfully submitted,
Melissa Allard

L1ST OF DOCUMENTS AND EXHIBITS:
* Meeting Notice/Agenda
December 11, 2019 Draft Meeting Minutes
2019 Energy Efficiency Budget
2019 Operating Budget
Power Supply Fund Balance Analysis worksheet
OPEB and Retirement Liability & Fund Balance Analysis worksheet

Cupre Light Compuct Exeentive Commitice & Govermng Bouard
Sevnrary &, 2020 Meering Mooy



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

® Cape & Vineyard Electrification Offering — Update PowerPoint

Cupe Light Compact Executive Copnnitice & Geverning Bouard
Sy 8, 2020 Meeting Minnies

10



SIVINEETIN
pJeog BbuluianoD DD Soinoss ABIoUS
ONON hm_. \A\_mjgﬂmﬂ_ [DD07 P3ISNI| INOA

MBIANIDAQ

Ppedwo)

uJelpo. d ldVINS ? 3611 aded




swielpboud
1N0-3AIEBD Z-DJHS pue [-DJYS paseq-D3y SNoIAaId 0] J0SS820NS

(LIVYWS) 19b4e] ajgemauay sijyasnyoesse Jejos .

(,.5D34,) se1eoiynied
ABJaus sjgemaual se 4yons sa1nglille [BJUSUIUOIIAUS BIA

pJepuels Ablauj ues|D
‘Plepuels Mead ues|D ‘plepuels 0I1]10J110d S|geMauy .

buliaiaw 19N -
11310 Xe] 91e1s .«

'SDAIQUDDUI, JB|0S 9181S VA




weiboid JHVINS 241 ul uonedidilied wouy
IDoUnSIp pue ajededas sI BULI9IDW DU J0j UoieIIeND .
A11014109|9 pPaJaAI|Dp JO mu:o_ |le1aJ salewdixoidde
an|eA DIAN ‘(1ejos doyjoou |elnuapisal “6'9) s1osaloid |jeuwds 10 .
A11011109|9 SS9IX® 11931 JO BN|eA
o] JO] S20J/N0OSal 91esuaduwlod 0] PopPpUS]Ul S @Ccmpmg 19N o

(,DINN,) S11Pa40 Bulia1SW 19U pP3||ed ale s1ipald ||Ig .
suolle|nbal pue Mme|

Ul 1IN0 pa||2ds e149111D UlLe11ad 01 aJaype 1sNnWd s109foid palsl1ad 19N e
IP3ID [|Iq
e 1o} abueyoxa Ul A1113N 8yl 01 siseq A|yruowd e uo pajeliausb
loMod ssa0x9 ||9S, 01 S109loud Ablsus sjgemaual (IN19,)
1919W-8Y1-PuUlysq YlIM SISUWI0ISND SMO||e 1ey] ulelbold

(sonlIn Ag paJaisiuludpe “o'l) pasedg-llliel e sl bulialawl 19N

bulialaw 19N




S YA MM AT UV Y Y A
SAIIUDDU| Paseq-yliel e sl JHVINS 1HVINS AQ papaadons
SJoM puUke 8|07 Ul papus swelbold DIYS UL IHVINS
'suwelboud syl buliaisiuludpe Ul PaA|OAUl 10U
9J9M S3al1l|IlN 3y | '¥d30q Ag paJailsiuiwpe pue paublssp sudelboud
(peseq-ylielr ueyl Jayiel) paseq-1a3leul alom [|-034S/I-D3HS -
‘welpboud [1-D3HS
91 1N0-9AIED JIB|0OS SdY PU0D3S e AQ PaMO||0) SeM SIY | 'SDTY
JOY10 ueyl anjeA Jaybiy e pey yolym (,sO34S,) S91ed41148D
ABlaug a|gemausy Jle|os a1elausab 01 9|qiIbi|s s109foud Je|os
10} (,Sdd,) piepuels o1j0j1i0d 9|gemausy Y1 JO 1N0-dAIeD
e UO paseq wdelboid aAlluadUl Je|os |ennlu] :swuelbold HJYHS »

‘Ad 1€|0S JO uolle||e1sul syl 91ela|922k 0] papua]ul
01 swelboid sAIluUSD Ul D1]109dS-1.|0S US3SISA0 puk paubisap
sey (,4303d,) s224n0say AbJiau3] Jo 1usuiliedaq VIN 92U

SuJeJpold

SAIIUSDU| JB|0S 4300




OJI/NATo JIot Y
10} @ouel|[dWw0d Sdy 404 Wayl ash Jo/pue 18¥Jew 01Ul SDOTY ||9S Aeud sailjiln

SI9UMO 109(oud 01 @1ed UAAX-12d paxI) e 1no
Aed pue syoafoid | HVINS AQ poalelausb sHTJY [-Sse|D doay Salll|iiN .

(51500 |eUOIlDESURI] pUE All|11B|0A
pulold pasnpal) |- [-D3YS 10 [9P0OW 19¥Jeud WOl AeME SAOIN
'S3111|13N Y1 AQ palsisiuiwpe 1Ng 4300
AQ paublissp welboid sAllUSDUI paseq-lliel e Sl [HVINS
ublssp welboid wiolul
01 S9AI103[qO aAaIyde 01 1S90 MOY U0 APN1S PaUOISSIUUILIOD 30J -
siuswido|aAap Je|os Jo sadA] |eIDljausaq
1SOW 91 BbUIZIAIQUSDUI pue $1502 JaAedalel Bulziudiulul

S|IUM VN Ul Je|0S JO (|I- %9 I-DFHS puoAsg) AMIA 0091
leuonippe ue Aojdsp 01 1Ual1Ul 3Y1 YlIM PaUbISSP SeM [HVINS o

welbold 19VINS




101 91e4 DIAN 92Ul Ajjennuassa si yalym S‘Ablaus

i

JO @n|eA, 9Y31 JoJ 1unodoe 0] paisnipe s| 91el uolnesuadudo)) »

91eJ SAIIUSDUI 1HVINS 943 AQ paljdininud (YAXA)
paonpoJd A11014109|9 JO 1UNOUJe [e101 Y1 1O (|1g 2143999
uo sOWN wou} ajededas) 1usuuAed e sAISI3I SISUMO 103[0dd »

91B1S 9Y1 SS0Joe AN 007 1NOge Bululeluod ¥20|g Yoea ‘syo0|q g e

uwelboud
91 Jopun pallljenb ale s109(oid a10W Se 9Ses109P Sa18d SAIIUSDU|

AO0|g SA11U=20Ul @C_C__Uw_o e se U@C@_mwﬂ_ .
‘019 ‘SI9XLe1JO ‘UOI1LRD0|
‘9715 109loud ‘adA] 108(0ud Y20|q SAIIUSDDUI ‘A101111S] 9DIAISS AdIjI1N
SJ1010e] JO 1S B UO poseq
uolle||ei1sul JO aWdll 8yl 1k paxl] sl poldad uonesijijenb |H4VINS
9411Ud aY) J0oJ 108foud yoes Joj a1kl Uo1esusdUudod/oAI11USDU|

21M]1ONJ1S 92AITUS0U| | HVINS




Sw91sAs 98eJ01s ASuaua padied Joy 109loud 9zis Aue 01 9|gedijdde sappe |[euollIPPY
duppoeuy Je|os pazi|iin 1 JaYlaym
pue ‘(A13ua o11gnd) Jaumo ‘(4ejos paleys AJlunwwod awodul-mo| ‘Ajadoad swodul-mo| “Jejos paseys Alunwwod)
9dA1 ‘(Jeanynolu8e ‘pajunow-Adoued ‘||iypue| ‘pIaiyumouq ‘uileol} ‘pajunow-3ulp|ing) uoiyedo| :apnjoul
(s309foad MY +G 404 9164 uoljesuadwod aseq a|qedijdde ayj o1 paijdde) ,sio01oesigns, pue ,siappe, 193[oid
ss920.4d Juswaindoud 1eyl Ag 195 sa1ed uollesuadwod aseq ayi 03 pailjdde auie sanoge UMOYS S93e3Uad49d
‘P Iwgns sao1ud 9yl uisn pue s1oaloid Jejos a3ue|

404 spiqg 8uindijos Aq A10314491 921A43S (NOI) AM|1IN PRUMO-101SBAUI Yoed J0} S3kd uollesuadwod aseq 19S Y30A

1] 617 aded

LYVINIS 404 2|q131[2 10N LYVINS 4104 3|q131]2 30N OV M 000°S <
sieah Q7 %00T OV M 000°S > DV M 000°T <
sieah 07 %0TT DV M 000°T > DV M 006 <
sieah Q7 %SCT DV MV 00S 5 DV MY 05T <
sieah o7 %0ST DV M 0S92 > DV W] ST <
sieaA 0T %00¢ QV W ST 5
s1eah OT %0ET 3WO0U| MOT DY M ST 5

y18ua] wia] uonesuadwo) 10)oe4 3y uonesuadwo) aseg Aidede)

SI9PPV/SWID ] /So1eY

uolesusduwo)d




$1S02 9Jueljdwod SdYy ,s491jddns jo 1ed

se |19 ay1 Jo apis Ajddns ay3 ysnoayi inq ‘sisawoisnd Aq Joyj pied os|e aJe sweiddoud ||/]-DFYS .

wayl aul| ,,284eyd uolNguisip, 03 ul jing soFPH HENIINA 4874128 BRIRERASN .
udelbold syl busisiuluupe Ul snO| syl Ag
A1911193]7 J0 1509 |eJ0] P=2J11N2OUl S1SOO SAllel]SIuUIdpe U®>OLQQ® 91

05'8€$
Crezs sealnlag Manjeq [lolans  PUR SSAIIUSDUI 89U Y10d Jo) Bulipuny sspn|ou|
€228 LIy X U LG} fouaioly3 ABleug abJeyod
800 £5000" X UM 151 obieyD F1ou3 olqemauoy w1l aul| ,JeJ0S Pa1INgLISId, SB UMOYS e
¢z 03 99100" X U 1S abley) 1ejog peinqusicl T e
80°0$ £C000° X UMW LS| abeyq Buidnooaq anusay AD 'a Dv SN a2llgnd JO 1usWJll ed °o(]
Lovs S6920°X A 151 sheug wosswsuel - gy AQ panosdde pue paMmaIASl J01oke)
20'0$- £1000™- X UM LG} obey) uopisuel 5 . .
9/'6 p9590" X UV LG abJey) uonnausicl 1aVvINS B Yonoldyl ||1q ollos|s JIsyl
0028 aB1e4) JOOISN) ]O 8pIS UoIINQIIASIP 3yl uo Wweiboud
909086 - o191
(petesold) (T7ILNAQISTY 1Y Z€ orey) LAVINS 941 PUN} SHISNYOESSEN
EETVTEN Ul SO OJ| 214109|9 JO SIsWIO]1SNO ||V e

sloudolsn) ¢sAed oyan




aN|eA
DINN 3yl Ajerewdixoidde s yaoiym ‘Abiaus JO anjeA syl Ag paonpay e
uollonpoud Jel1ol}
Uo paseq si1o9aloid 01 uonnesuadulod ysed ssplnoid [ HVYINS e

11312 ||Ig e 10) abueyoxa Ul A11011109|S SS9IX? ||9S 01
swdelbold Abiaus s|gemausl paljljenb smo|je bulialawl 19N
sieak 0Z-0OL ‘LAVNS -«
S1esA Gz :bullalswl 19N
SWJJ9) uoledljljenb ualdayiq e
sded uonedionied weliboud Jusaialiq e
suolle|nbal pue sme| a1eledss AQ
P3UISA0D ‘slelbold ajeledsas ale | HVIAS pue bulislawl 19N

Aleuduwns




Ppedwo)
b1 ade)

J/WOSJejoseudseud//:dny :sbedgam | HVINS NOI »
UieJpbold-1Jeuds-1abiel-s|gemausl
-S119SNYOBSSeUl-1e|0S-S41-JO-JUSWdO[SASP-|BOIOISIY/S[Te1sp
-OJUI/AOBD'SSEUWMMM//SA1Y (] VNS JO 1USUIdO|SASP |BD1I0ISIH
uueJlpolid
-}JelusS-19bIel1-5[eMaUSI-S118SNDOEBSSell-1e[0S/S[1e18p
-OJUI/ACDSSEUTMMAM//SA1TY :ebedgam | HVINS S,430d -
. - JPA'690-9[-ITdVINS
-DUMSD/S3[1J/ANEJSP/S31IS/WODADISUS-SSARUAS MMAM//.SA11Y
D7D AQ PBUOISSILUUIOD 110d3al |HVINS 9SAdBUAS .

So0J/NO0Say |BUOHIIPPY



https://www.synapse-energy.com/sites/default/files/Getting-SMART-16-069.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/solar-massachusetts-renewable-target-smart-program
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/historical-development-of-the-solar-massachusetts-renewable-target-smart-program
http://masmartsolar.com/

0g’s

0g’s
000
DE'T
000
000
000
0t's
06'8L
06°LY
o000
or'9
000
0o'o
000
058t
05T
06'0
00’0
000
ot9
000
000
o000
0501
00°0
oL'e
000
000
00’0
060
00’0
000
000
aoo
010
oo'o
oo'o
000

aisn% 139008 NGVIIVAY  GIGNIdXI QLA 1390N8 A3ISIAIY

898'914

89891/
000°E
.86
00s
0002
000'sT
0917
FAYA
798'€T
0009
196°GT
00s
005t
00521
19¢
796
016’6
000'00T
0000z
6E6
000'T
000'56T
08
SLb'y
BGE
¥59'S5T
008
009°¢
000t
96t
000'sT
002y
00S
SLT'T
L2021
EOS'ET
000's
000's¥

OE'Z6E'0V

0£'Z6E°0F
000
08zt
000
000
000
96'v9
05'€£84'ST
00'8€6°LT
000
25°8E0T
000
000
000
BL'SZZ
V' S6T
6868
000
000
z9'09
000
000
000
00°'SZS
000

8L SPE'Y
000
000
000
e
000
00’0
000
000
19°L
000
000
000

092'25¢

092’152
000°€
0001
0os
000t
000'sT
szt
000°02
008’1t
000'9
000°LT
005
00S't
00S'ZT
L89
521
00007
000001
000°02
000°'T
000°1
000561
08
000°s
B6E
000'09T
008
009°E
000'T
00S
000'ST
oos'zy
00s
STl
SE0'TI
EOS'ET
000°'s
000°st

092'LSL

092'LSL
000°E
000t
005
0007
000°sT
STT'T
000°0¢
008'TY
0009
000°L1
00S
005t
00521
£85
LS2'T
00001
000001
00002
000'T
000'1
000'561
08
000'S
86€
000'091
008
009°¢
000't
00%
000°sT
00L°zh
00s
SLTT
SE0'ZT
EOS'ET
000's
000°'s¥
d0¥ddV TYNIDIHO

|elo] asuadx3

QONNd DNILYY3dO T0 (2101
INIWIND3 YILNdWOD-dO
WIISAS IYYMLIOS TVIONYNIS-dO
ANINGIND3 I5IN-dO

S8 QIVvdNN-dO
JONVUNSNI-dO

S3SNIDN JUYMLIOS-dO
SNOILdIYDSsans-do
SdIHSYOSNQdS-dO

JLV1S 1NO 13AVYL-d0
J1V1S NI 13AVHL-dO
5311ddNs A004-d0
$311ddNS-d0O

ONILNIHd-dO

13INHILINI-dO
SINOHdIIIIL-dO
39Y1S0d-d0

IDVHINOD ONILINYVN/HIVIYLNO-dO
TVNLIVYLINOI-JdO

SIJNIAYAS AUNSVYIYL-dO
$334 11dNv-d0O

SIDIAY3S TWOIT-dO
53J1AY3S TIOUAVdE-dO
d073A30 TYNOISS340Yd J4v1S-dO
SIIAYIS LI-dO
ONISILYIAQY-dO

$3DIAH3S TVIA0LSND-dO
1N3Y-d0

STVAN3H ISIN-dO
S31LLN-40

ALITIBYI1 83d0-d0

ALNIBYN AINIWIHILIY-dO
S3IONIYL ISIN-dO

S3XVL YIHIO/IUVIITIW-dO
JONVHNSNI dNOYD-dO
ANIW3IHILIY-dO

IAHISIH AUVIVS-dO
S531UVIVS-dO

NOLLJINIS3A LNNOJDY

5585
vS8S
0S8S
68L5
11745
CELS
TELS
0eLs
ozLs
0tLs
06bs
00vs
SPES
trES
EVES
TPES
Ozes
61¢ES
BTES
91Es
STES
PLES
ETES
60ES
TOES
0629
zLes
0Lzs
0tes
1818
0815
6L15
15
ELTS
TLIS
6T1S
0119
103190

T00tTO
TO0TO
10070
10010
T00TO
T00TO
10010
10010
T00T0
T00TO
T00T0
100170
T00T0
T00TO
T00TO
10010
10010
10010
tooT0
T00TO
10070
10010
T00TO0
T00T0
TOOTO
TOOTO
10010
10010
T00T0
10010
10010
10010
T00T0
T00TO
TO0TO
TO0TO
10010

DHO



3inin4 ABiaug 4131ipwWs ¥ piomoy 1ay1abo] Suiyiom

5

_1,.._ @E@%@ UOIIEIIIIII3|T PIeASUIA 8 aded




S||lq A84aua ||esan0 Ssiawolsnd Sunedidijied
saonpaJ AjaAI1329449-1502 OQJAD ‘Spunj apisIno
suidel1ana] pue spuny Aduaidiyje A31aua Suizijinn .

Ndd 3Y3 pue siapjoyael1s Agq pasies suiaauod
sassaJppe |esodoud pasinad ayl pue 42y Saiiunwwo)

U345 By} 01 SJUBWPUSWE YTOZ Y3 SRIUBAPE OFAD o

OV33 3yl wodl 03AD Jo 1oddns ul uolanjosal
e Jo 9sessed Suiaas si (D7) 3edwo) sy ade) .




jusawj|odus O3AD O}

Jo1ud Seunsesw papuaWWoIad ||eIsul pue JUaUISSasse
A3Jaua aney 01 paJinbal aqg ||Im sjuedidilted ||V

SI9W01sSNd 0SZ

0] pajiwyj ‘sdnous Jswoisnd (JINS %08-T9) awodul
-9]eJapoW pue (JINS %09=>) 2WOIUI-MO| UO S9SNI0

(SS39g) swiaisAs 23e.03s A3iaua Aiayieg —

swiaisAs (Ad) o1eyjonoloyd Jejos —

sdwnd jeay sjewli|d p|o) —
:98e)oed e se saldojouyaal aa4yj shojdaqg .

M3INIBAQ 0IND




Alsoyine anbjun aney si01e3daid3y jedidiunin .

(N(a)(z)a) ‘Tz § ‘ST 1D sei8ojouydal
A81aua ues|d J3Y10 40 $92.4n0s A8Iaud 3|gemausd 0] SulydUms
SJ3WO031SNnd ul 3jnsaJ jeyy sweusoud, apnjoul Aew ue|d e :Ad JBJOS —

(w)(n1)(2)(a) ‘Tz & ‘ST "1'D . se180j0uyda) Juswadeuew

puewap aAI3de JaYylo pue 23e103s Adiaua Sulpnjul swelidosd
Juawasdeuew peo| pue Adualdiya s, apnjoul Aew ueid e :saiiajleg —

(w)n)(2)a)

‘T2 § ‘ST "1'D ,/S1502 JoAedalel Sulziwuiw 3jiym uordwinsuod

Ald11309}8 papuedxa 4o asn 3yl Y8noayl suoissiwd sed asnoyuaais

Ul SUOIIINPaJ 3AI12949-15S02 Ul 3[NSDJ 03 pausisap aJe Jeyl sainseatu
Se Yons ‘uolledlli1d9a d1da1ea3s °, apnjpul Aew ue|d e :sdwnd jesy —

pulw ul sjusWpusWY VIO 8TOT YHM pausisag .

punoisa)oeg Adljod




[esodoud
P3siAJ e dO|3Aap 01 SI9pjoya|els Ylim payJom sey J1) —
‘NdQd 01 |[eniwgnsal
0} Jolud usisapaJ jo |eaosdde D33 paJlinbal
pue SuJa2uod Jsp|oysdels JO uollelapisuod |[euonippe
paisanbay ,uoileiapISUOD IS0 SIUBW, 3 PIILI1S
Ing pasodoid Ajjeniul usym anoidde jou pip NdQ
|9A3] aWodUl Ag S92IAISS PaLall ‘SI2W0ISnI |10) 00L —

uejd Asuaidiy)e AS1aus Tz0T
-6T0¢C JO 1ed se 03AD pasodoud Ajjenniul 30edwo) e

L 5000 ue|d uo punoisoeg

Svpmii



49141e( 1509 “_.CO‘_“_.Q_‘._ 4O 9NSSI 9] SOSSAIPPY .

Adual|isau
13 9suodsad puewap 4o} 98e401s Auajieq [[easu| e

SUOISSIWS HHO 2dnpaJd pue wa3lsAs Suileay
JO uOoI11Ed1}143I9|° 3J0ddns 01 SWISAS Ad ||BISU|

sdwnd jeay ajewl|d
P|O2 01 1eay d2ue)sisad 2141292 ‘@uedold ‘|10 1UBAUOD
S9UNSEaW 934y ||e 40§ SSAIRUIDUI paoueyuy —
(%08-T9) awodu| ajeiapow
(9609 031 dn) swoouI-MO7] :2WOodUl AQ S9IIAIBS
paJan ‘syuedidilied pajesay se3-uou |e10] OGZ AIDS .

S9A1323[q0 03IND




0S¢ SLT GL syuedidnued |eio).

de2 uoiNQI3u0od
3woou|

13WoIsNd 0O0’'SS %00T 00T Sl ST %08-T9
]eI3POIAl
%+G/
%001 (SpIMSEIS) 0ST 00T 0S %09=> WI0dU|-MOT]
: %00T 3

BAIIUIU e10
& _ IAIUIIU| dH ! tecoe 0coc
oy | () on o

a3eJ031S + Ad 1e|0S

S9AIUIU| Juedididied OINAD




s1oedwl| [|Iq pa2onpaJ ‘1S0J ||BJIAO JIMO| Ul 3jNSal saguey) .

SI9P|OYa LIS YIM A|2S0|2 payJom pue ‘usisap mau w.ojul
01 S412d0|9ASp JB|OS O} UOIIBWIOU| 10} 1SaNnbay e panss] 10edwo) —

SdV ‘piepuels yead
ues|) ‘suolin|ospaldauuo) IHVIAIS ‘uolleldaldap ‘D1 | |e19pa4 —

sioAedales uo §33 Jo 1oedwil 92npald 03 sweldoud aAnuadUI
J3Y310 pue s}ipaJd xe3 Jo uoilezizsuow smojje swalsAs Aiajieq
+ A\d J1B|0S 10} |apow (Od.L) diysisumo Ayied-paiyl saanzeaouu| —

swesgdoid/sanipuaou] SullSixa S98eIDA3| J9119g
IS %08< 40} SOAIIUSIUI pasueyu pajeulwl|] .

(TZ02/020T 10} 0779 WO4j ‘SIaW0ISNd 0SZ) d2IS paonpay e

saduey) jo Alewwing




(ASJaus uo juads swodul
JO %) suapunqg A3iaua Y31y aAey 01 pusl SISWOISNI [T

dnous 4awo3snd siy1 ur uoiydope
98e.03s 10} ajenbape jou S| wesdoud acuewlopiad-ioj-Aed apimalels
r98e.03s 10} Aed Jouued SI9WO0ISNI WODUI-31RIDPOW PUE -MOT]

28e101s Alaneg —
sdwnd jeay 01 SuUIUDAUOD WO [[Iq 214333|3 03 30edWil SINPIY

“|INIS JO SS9 10 908 PouUlEa Sjuaplisal
aJayM Saluoy O] 91aM SUeO| Je|os DJDSSeN >_>_\UU Jo %7 —

sdnoug %20|q SNSUaJ | Ul Je SUOIIL|[BISUl JBjOS AA/ID JO %8 AjuQ —
1502 juoiydn ysiy ‘s1ipaid Xej Jo a3ejueApe 2y el Jouued Ajjeiausg .
Jejog —

sdwnd 1eay jo 1502
juoydn y3iy o1 anp auedo.id pue [10 WOLJ SIDWOISNI YIUMS 03 I[NIYIQ

UOIIEIIIIDT —
:JO SWJ3Y Ul pulyag
19| 3ulag SJe SI2W01SND SWO0IUI-91RI9POW PUBR -MOT

prued Alnb3 uo sn2o4



1SOJ |BUOI}IPPE OU 1B J3WO0ISND 0] 13N
SWIa1SAs ‘poliad diysiaumo Odl JO pud 1y :sieah oT 1Y .

000°GS 01 dn waisAs
JO %G 40} 3|qisuodsal :ydd 049z-uou e aney Aew syueddiyed [N —

Vdd 0$ 9Aey [|im queddiped 7 —

:3S02 jJuedpiyed .
}2BJ3U0D S,30edWwio) USIs |[Im siuedidijued pue Jopuap —
‘poliad diysisaumo OdJ Sunp adueuajulew

pue sduew.oyiad wajsAs Joy ajgisuodsau aq ||IM
‘sieaA oT 03 dn J0) wBISAs UMO |jIM OdL Alinba-xe] :OdL -

1appiqg pauijenb
103|3S pue (Ydd) 1uswaause aseyaind sjamod §S3g

+ Ad Odl ,pled-aid, e o} 444 anss! [|Im 10edWO) :\fdd e

suoljelapisuo) udisag Ad) OdlL




sjuedidnued OJAD 404 30BIUOD ddUBUIIUIEW JBIA OT-G 3Jnd0ud 1M DD
sieaA Q-G J40J 1502 @JuLUUIBW dH ON —

asuadxa pue uondo
S, 49WO01SNI 1B YYdd PuoAaq ajueualuiew papualxe o) 44y anss! [IIM 7D

W3] \Ydd 4390 1502 (S 1e 3dueualulew SSIF+Ad —
WJal Ydd JO pus [13un §SS3g+Ad SUMO Odl ‘SdH SUMO Jawoisn) —
S||1q AS1aua padnpay —

Y109

Vdd JO wua) 430 JuawAed peauds 01 uoindo A1 .
ded 0p0’sS ‘1502 WalsAs Jo %Gz 104 JuswAed SSIG+Ad —
1SOJ OU 1e pa||eisul SdH —
:9W0oU|-91BJ3POIN

meuoc“m_om__Smc_mm_mo_OccumHmEE__<“mE0uc_-\so._

puiue 9AIRI3dsIad Ssjuedidnied



"W} Ydd Jan0 pealds aq 0} 3|qe 3q Aey ‘walsAs $538/Ad 40} a1eys 1502 Juediued s| umoys Jeq Aeso

03AD 134V |18 03AD 21038119
jedH sadejdsid dH  1e9H s2oejday dH

-$
auo|p el B
(un2) ydd san0 000'ES nnl..
33yl aya Jo Aub L ouss 2
1so3uedmiped 000'9§
000°LS
m:-\\\cnﬂm’:-\ :c Q-N SlUoouf 231b019poiN
1upndidilind o}
03AD 124w e 03A0 2J0jad lig
[pI21fauaq aiow T —
. we NN M
m..\ Sainspaul %12 %st- . “%Mw m
000'€S 3
Jo abvyond vorsy
0009$
SWodUj mo’q

03N a10f3g builpaH |10

oeduw| 1s0) A3idu3 Jow0o3sn)




"WI3} Ydd 490 peauds aq 0} ajqe aq Aey "wa1sAs $S39/Ad 40} s4eYs 3500 3uedidied s| umoys Jeq Aeso

03AD J3Yyv |(id 03AD 2Jajag Jig
jeaH sadedsiQ dH  1E8H S9281daY dH
I -5
U 0\ D I8 I T Roi- “%MM m
(w33 vdd 13n0 000°€S 5
334yl ayl Jo Aub QL oovvs 2
1503 Juedpiped 000'9$ -
000°2$
m C.s \ \ c.w.m. :.\ cc ﬁ\.ﬂ SWo3U| 31043poN
jupbdidiyiod o3
03AD Jayv |Ig 03D 30428 1118
\G.FU.\UNMQNQ m.\QE 1eaH saIedsiQ dH  1B9H S32e09Y dH .
e e = -
m.\ SaiINsbal %ZL- %18- “H.MM m.
_ ooo“mm W
Jo abpyond =y
000'9%
3wosuj mo7

03N) a40fag buypsy aundoid

oeduwj 3s0) AS1au3 Jow03sn)




"ULI3} Ydd 43A0 peasds aq 03 ajqe aq Aely walsAs $539/Ad 104 aaeys 3502 Juedidiied sy umoys Jeq Aesg

03nD Jayviig 03A0 3J0)94 |iF
1e3H s32e(day dH
=S
UO|D e lam...- core 3
“oetsapne owss 2
934y 3yl Jo Aupb T oorss 2
1500 Juedpiued ! oo0'ss
000°LS
m :.\ \ \ B.N M. :.s :c Q.N aloou| apiapo
1updiaznnaod o3
03AD Joyv g 03A0 aJiojag ||id
[bI2Ifauaq aiow S——
e — =
SI S31NSLa = owzs 3
000'€S 3
Jo 2bpx204 ourss 2
000'9%
SWoou moi

03N 240fag Bunpay pipoqasng 314323(3

oeduw] 3s0) ASiau3z Jowolsn)




GL

‘spunf Aauapiffo

Abi1aua-uou uj N8S 43N0 3BDI3A3] [lIM ‘PASIA3L SD ‘OIAD S3IDWIIISI 3a0dwo) ay |

(Tz02/0202

ur pauupyd Ajjpuibrio 09 sn pasinai sb 0Gz) siundiirind 1amaf pup bujpunf
apisino fo buibpiana| 03 anp Ajupwiid (puiblio o) paipdwod so uoi3anpal 136png

WNG6°STS-

WNLTTS
NI LTS

|el0l

ING'STS- At 0S- 9JUalajjld
NO'SS N89S PoSIASY
INS0ZS T LS UE|d

93e.101S sduing
+ A\d 1e9H 1¢0¢-0¢0¢

193png pasIndy



ve'zS = X + O0EZ00°05 T20Z-610C
(43 = X + TEV00°0S 1202
9L°TS = X + OLE0D'0S <¢T-L‘0Z0C
€0°CS = X + [9100°0% 9-1‘0z0¢
ve'1s = X + S0000°05 610¢
v6'TS = 88y X 06200'0S + 8rI00°05 8107

(yauows aad) (YAAd) @8esy uoREAJ43sUOD)

433 SALIA

7-Y) dWoouj Mo

3500 B30 AlJauopy ‘3Ayy A3.3u3

c6'Z1S = X + 66TT0'0S TZOZ-610C
6S° V1S = X + 8/520°0$ 120z
66'CTS = X + 8922005 ¢T-L'0Z0T
N A4 RS = X + 7912008 9-T'0Z0C
SLTIS = X + 82Z020°0S 6702
88°0TS = o1S X  06200°05 + 6S810°05 8T0T

(yauowis aad) (YAAY) @3esn  uontadlsuod

51EQ
350D |30 | Ajyauoly ‘3ay Adaaug ZEEE 2

{7T-J) [PnuspIsoy

syoedwy |jig




Ajuo sainspaw OIAD

%LS- (o1) s[z1t $[9oz ¢ (Wg)138png 21
%e- (£0) 4 0'€ oney 150D-1yauag
9%EL- (e¥) S|est s|68 § - {WS) suyauag 19N
%86~ (£t) s|oer ¢$|e6z S (nS) s1s0D DL
9%89- (09) s|tv8c S|688 S (Wns) sugauag
mmwcwﬂuu.mtwuahou
%TG- (666'T) | Sg6'T v€6'E Suoj HOYS ZOD |enuuy
9,09~ (€98'v) | 86T'S 190’8 MY ID1UIM
%T9- (tro'v) | 8g6C 6LS°L MY Jowwing
%TL- (81t'v6) | 098'8E 6LT'EET YMIN W3
9%GL - (vze'e) | teet ore‘Y UMW [enuuy
%19~ (06€) 0Sz ot9 syuedidijed
_ — T
@8ueyd o5 asue |
20Ualaljiq |(PeSInGY| ue|d 1202-020¢

SSOUIAII3}}3-1S0) pue S3uines



OTT-8T ‘N'd’'a ul 3uljl asueldwod
B Se Sal)l|ian 31|qnd jo 1uawiiedaq 03 Jwgns .

UoIlN|oSay [IdUNOD UO 9]10A pue uolissnasig o

sda3ls IXaN




34ning Abusuz 43310WS v piomoy isyiaboy bulyiom

L RV ez

e R =l

{ii. StaRs .. _._.___..._..‘._.._,u..%_f.___._“._” — @N.@m m._“ >‘_-3._Qwu_?_ 25

0202
SanjeIIu| S193.3S ule




020¢
10} pauue|d SJUSAT

JU=oAC

6T0C ‘C 42903100 wou4
uoljedidilied Jo deddy e

$S19341S UIBAl SI 1_UAN »

M3IAIDAQ



OAES sSeul JJe1s umo] aAiuoddng .
92J3WWO0)

Jo Jaquiey) padedus .

ssauisng 0] ssauisng 03 0}
19243S 9Y3 Supj|em 4o} smoj|e
YaIlym ,193J1S Ulejp,, pauijaq e
1193415 9|q181|2 40} BLID .

J9WO01SNI YHUM

dn moj[|0} ||IM am salllunlioddo
194310 104 *31IS-U0 sainseawl
Aduaidi)je A3iaua ||eisul 0} eale
paljioads e ul Joop-03-100p 03
‘(Jopuan uoijetasiijal) INYN pue
3ul193u1SUT 3SIY YIIM SUIJOAA

$193.J1S UIBIA SI 1BUM




sjuawanosdwi Adualdiye
19y1in} Joj dn paudis siswoisnd Auey .

Arg davag, 3
SAIIGIID 34pn,

AJlunwwod ay3 ul aq
01 D7D 40} Allunuoddo pooo "wesdoud
9Y1 1N0ge MOU) UDAD 1,UpIp SWOS

$1500 AS1aud J19Y] U0 dAeS
wayl djay 031 syuawssasse ayl sulop
1oedwo) ys] ade) aAey 03 PaMIXT .

SI2UMO
SSQUISNQ WO YIBgPad) dAINSO e

oul 4900320 uo
syN|g JeO pue weyieyd ul SIUIAS P|OH

JU9A3 6T0C JO deday




9]qissod se ajdoad Auew se ainyded
03 SAep oM} Jo au0 JO pealsul (f-€) SAep |eJaA3S JOAO JUDAD PIOH

SWI1 e 1B JUIAS 519241S UIB|A] UMO] 9UO P|OY ‘S324N0S3J SZIWIXEW O]
(*219 ‘siswolsnd
JO #) S1USAS 2un1ny} 4o} ejep Jo Supoedy ayl Sulrosdwil 3q [IMN e
P314Nd20 JUBA3 3y} 24042q p3so|d pey
pue |eUOSEdS aJe 1ey] SUOIIed0| Y1og Ul S9SSaUISN( |BJDAS DI9M 3]
SJI9UMO ssaulsng Jo
uoljesedald ayl pue syn|g 3eQ 40} JUDAS 3Y31 JO $S220nS 9Y] 0} A sem
yaeaaino sulop Ajgainoe Ajjlunwiwiod ayl Jo Jaquaw paishnJl e SUlABH .

PouUIBa| SUOSSIT

9/T'¥ST 99°861'965 6C syin|g yeQ
¢85°L6 00'C6E'ELS 44 weyeyn

panes ymy |eioL 9AIUddU| |ejol | sjuedidilied |el0)

sjuedidipied 193.41S UIRA 6TOC




— o e [IDd 4 5 ‘BULDS , :p3sOdOid
S '12/2 Aepli4 AQ 1s8481Ul WUIJUOD Bsed|d e
e oy .
W geh AINGSIL 4y o
[ ———— UMOJDIUIAOIdy o
EEEIEER SUBD|O sy *
T R S R HOd YIMIEH,
,nn.__......u....,ESL..E..S&S‘_W:H..E”F,_S_H_NM LU_>> IBH o
- JIAIDISO .
SIUUBAH
e S 9[qeisuleg .
" o e | -OJ3M GTOT Ul 1S242JUI PIMOYS JBY] SUMOY o

(Ae@ Asuaidiy3
A8i13u3 punoue) 413¢0320 JO }2aMm 15.1) pue Jaquwaldas JO yaam 1se] .
(]9 ssaulsng |jews) AejA JO Jo9m 1s41) pue |ludy JO J3am Ise] .

114 Y1 ul Z pue 3urids ul SJUSAS 7 p|oY 01 SUI)00T .

SJUSAT S193.1S UIRIN 0Z07C




%G9 01dn %05 01 dn wolsnd

%06 01 dn %08 01 dn uonelasiiyay pue 3unysaii |euollippy

Sjejsotllayl ‘speaylamoys
‘sdiJ3s ews ‘saAjen Aeads
%00T %00T ‘s10leJae 199Nk} ‘sqng ul-mauds @31

19440 5193J1S Ule|A| 130 pJiepuels S9INSEIN

ey o B By

;.....m.m P 5 . ' >MU

& . 3Y1 UO 32UBPUSIIE U] 3 [|IM IayeW
UOISIDSP B 1BY] 2.NS ew pue Aep

ay1 JO dIuUeApE Ul Yoeasino yum diay
01 Ajunwwod ayy ul syjo) adesuy .

S213S1807




sa.njoid pue oapiA ‘Suniedidinied
sassauisng ayj alowoid ‘Aep syl
uo 28eJan0d eipawl uielqo 01 Alj .

$19119|SMmau
9Y1 Ul SHSSU| 198 0] 92J2WW0)
s 10 SI2QUWIERYD |E20] 3Yl YHM NIONN .

. 3 | Tkl AUl BN PRIIY € Ky S

Pt o s Sassaulsng 01 yaeadino uo 34oMm

i pue siojesisiulwpy/siadeuep
e e UMO] wodJj oddns uieigQ e

Oun ey 5 pedus) 14 adey

JUSAD SIY3 1n0Oge sassauisng
pa128.e} 01 Yoeasno pue
SuneyJew 214109ds 39 ||IM 343YL »

SIUDAJ 10} SulJeN




sanuaAe
J2Y10 pue sJajl9|smau Jiayl ysnodyiz sunpowoud
Ul 9JUB1SISSEe 40J 22J3WW0)) JO siaqueyd) YIM MIOM
spe julad pue |e13ip ‘spe olpeds ‘Sul1adie) eipawl |BIDOS e
1940 siy3y sunowo.ud pJeAsuip pue ade)
93 UO SasSauisnq 031 Yyoeauino pue SuiSIFIAPE OP [|IM e
19g03120-13quia1das .
AeAN--|1udY o
:JO
poliad awi syl 4o} pJeAsulp pue ade) Uo SUMO] ||e
ul ‘(98esn |enuue Ul Ypm uoljjiw g1 03 dn) ‘sassauisng
||e 01 PRpUIIX3 3] ||IM 12440 ,S19341S UIB|Al,, DY

IV 40} J3HO 5183435 Ule,



810" 10edwodiysijoded @ uosiapuay|

6889-9/L¢-80S
uosJapuaH Aespuri




0202/€1/20
‘bsq ‘uraysuaag ‘I Aa.ay)9(
:Aq pajuasaad

'Od ‘MV1D95:

IO

S[[Ig @1ewWI]) syppasnydesse
Jo Arewiuing



'SSaJIPPE YI[BIMUOWWOY) 33 JO IEIS
SIY Ul 0G(0Z Aq SUOISSIWD U0Q.Ied 0.J9Z }2U 0] S1I9SNYILSSBI
pPONTWWOD Jayey JOUIdA0Y) :0Z0Z ‘TZ Alenug|

‘0607 Aq SuoISSIwa uoq.ed 0.9z .10J wie A3Y3 193930,

VY JAVS Ad1ouy 8LYT'S -
AJ1[04 91eWI[) UOTIBISUAY) IXaN SUINLS VY UV :LL¥Z'S -

IaMO( 331,J-uoqgJae’) 03 sasng
pUE SYONIJ, ‘SIen) JO UOIISURI [, 93 91eI9[300y 01 10V UY :9L% 7S -

:9SNOY 9] 03 dA0W 03 S[[1q 93.1Y) pasoadde sey ajeusas

ageyoed [[1g 21 W) SNIISNYILSSEA

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



welgo.ad Aouardy)a A3I1aua )10 S1S00q JuswWpusawy e
JUaWIAIL]S
uoissiu (,ndd,) SN d1qnd jo yusuniedsq maN e

paysIiqeiss
uoIsSIuwon) A2104 ayewi[) Sopydiep) yuapuadopu] MaN e

youe.aq 9AINIIXD
Aq 770z Aq paysi|gelsa aq 01 WiSIueYdd ULl Uoq.le) e

S1938.1e].
WILIDIU] IM ‘0G(0Z AQ SUOISSTUWS] UOQJE)) 0197 JON e

MIIATOAQ :LLYVT'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



payoeal
J0U 1931e] J1 sdoa3s [erpawial apnoul 3snuwi yeyl 1o03.1e)}
3uIMO[[0]J 9oueI[dW0I JO 91eI1119D J[1) 0} AIE18.103S e

payoeal
s193.Je) 8ansus 0} suonengald ajegnuodd 03 A1e]19.100S e

2InjnoLise
‘BUI[00D pue guleay [erauapIsal/[erLnsnpul/erIaWwuwod
‘uonyerrodsueny ‘seg reanjeu ‘romod

DLI3D9[0 dUIpN[IUI ‘SI03I3S UIeLIdD Ul 13S 9 03 SHWIqNS e

S[9A9] 066T MO[3q %G L ISB3[1V :010C -
S[9A9] 066T MO[3q %(0S ISB3[1V :0€0C -
:AQ Surpnoul ‘saead G A1sAa paysI|qeisa
9 SIWI[ UOTIINPAT UOISSIWD U0(gJed SaIinbay e

T
0502 Aq suoIssiwy 0197 19N :LLYT'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



"‘padJojud pue pasoduil aq Aew sanjjeuad sAnjeISTUTWPE [IAT)  ©
0£02 Aq s3uIp[ing [eRUAPISAY -
G707 Aq ssurp[ing [euonninsul pue ‘eLiRsnpur ‘ernIawwo’) -

'(.1D1,,) @an€NIU]
glewl[) ¥ uonelodsuel], 9yl ysnoayy zz0z Aq 10309s uoneliodsuel], -

:$10309s 2J10ads 10J 9o11d uoqgJaed e do[oAap 03 SQUI[ped([ e
quows[dw 0] suonyengdad ajegnuwodd 0} A1e19109S e

‘(,opexy pue ded, [euoigda.

10 99) U0Q.JED [BJINSU-dNUIASI “3'9) 109[9S 03 D UB.I(] SAIINIIXD
01 11 SOABJ] ‘WISIUBYIDW J1J109dS B 9S00UD 10U S0P [[I 9Y, e

‘7702 ‘T Arenue[ Aq aoed
Ul 9 3snw wisiueydaw guidLid uoq.aed paseq-jo3aewt y

e
WISTUBYII SULIJ U0qIe) :LLFT'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



'SHIWI] UODNPST UOISSIWD
WILIIUI JB3A-9A1) J10) doueI[d W0 JO S91Bd11I9D
sururwexs sgurLieay o gqnd p[oy 03 UoISSIwo”’) e

'STe0d spJaemo) ssaado0.ad 10309s ajeartd
pue o1[gnd SSaSSe pue yoed] 0] UOISSTWWOT) e

Jouuewt

paseq-92ualds ‘uesnJed-uou e ul SISLID 3jewlI[d

9] Jo ul[puey s,91e1s a3 93S.19A0 03 30pyIIeMm
o1[qnd Juspuadapul ue saysI[qeIss [[Iq 9Y], e

.
uoissruuwo) Ad1jod daewl[) :LLYT'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



'SUOIINQLIJUOD UONONPaJ UOISSIWS [enjoe
ajen[eas i3snu N4 ‘suerd Jeak-sa1y Jo UOISN[OUOI Iy @

"*9ABSSSEJN Im sueld Jeak-aaay] ojul
S[e03 UOTIONPAJ SUOISSTWD 31e10d.I00Ul SN AIB19.109S e

'9A1109]J9
1502 st ue[d ay3 J1 feaoadde proyyiyim jou Aewt ndd ayd
pue ‘uefd apim-aiels a3 ueyl aAlsuaya.rduwod aaow 1o
paosueyua st eyl uerd A31ous ue asodouad Aewr )T aYI]
suonjegatgde [edorunui jey) papiaoad 9z yuswipuswy e

- D
s1oeduy Aouayyq ASaouy :LL¥VZ°S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



‘(seanyeradwa)

puno.s Mojaq JouLlem guisn sguiping yeay eyl sargojouyda)

99JJ-SUOISSTWD “9'1) A3I9Uad [eWLIa) d[qemaual, liodsuen)
pue ajetauas jey) souljadid pue ASojouyoal 393 Aew sanIiI) o

'sjo[1d uonneaouur A319Us punj 03 191uUa7) ASIous Ued) VIN ©

'SguIp[ing mau
10J duneay Jo 92In0s ayj Se s[onj [ISS0J JIWI[ 03 SOPO0I Y1a.13s A319ud
J930LI3S J0BUD 0} SUMO) PUE SIS MO[[E 0] 9p0I ASI9UD OISZ 19N e

(‘weadoad [YVIAS 92U JO an[IeJ SaSSaIppy) ‘SonuNuWUWOod 3Wwodul
-MO] J10J SUOned0[[e apise 19s 0] sweadoad A31ous Je[os aInin, e

"*9WI} 1S.11J 9Y3 J10J SUOISIIAP
A107€TN38J Ul SUOISSIWD HHH Ul SUONDINPAL dpN[OUl 0] UOISSTW S, N[ @

SUOISIAO.Id SNOJUE[|IISIIA - LLV 'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



juowdinbas Ajddns app1ysa 21130914
saIpoq Japyurids Aeads
Suej SUNB[IIUSA [BLIUSPISOY

S.I9[00J IaleA\

193002
weals pue syauigqed SuIp[oy pooj-10Y ‘SI9A1J ‘SUDAO ‘SI9YSEMUSIP [BIII2WIWOY)

sdure] 901AI9S [edouagd paje[ndal-21elS e

sdure]
Juadsaton(j Juaisisar-1oedwl pue aanjetadwa) pyod ‘xapul SULIdPUL I0[0D YSIH e

siojiuow pue siondwor) e
seds 211309]9 a1qe3lod ‘saanixy pue sguniy surquind ‘speaylomoys ‘sjoone] e

:saosuerdde jenJawuod
pue p[oyasnoy uowwod /T JI0J sp.Jepuels AdDuaidijjo
I91eM pue ASI9Ud S, Jeamuouiuio’) a3yl jJo uoisuedxy

DV JAVS AS1auq :8L¥Z°S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



‘SULISPISUO0D
os[e a.1e (Y ‘LD ‘AN ‘AN “8'3) sa1e1s 1a30 (6T (T 10 810 Ul
spJepuels Jay) palepdn (0D ‘IH ‘LA VD “8'9) s9jels owos e

(s139snyoessey [BIUSWUOIIAUY :931)) SUOISSTWD
[ENUUE UOQJed S ,JI[eaMUOWWO0T) Ul SU0) SOLNdW )00 TLZ -

pue s[[iq A1[nn ut uol[Iw 87§ -
1J0 G£(0Z AQ suononpal pajewnlsy e
‘(sqrmq sy
“8'9) spJepuels AdUaD1JJo ASI19UD [BI9PIJ SWOS YOeq[[o.1 03
[9A9] [BI9P] 93 Ik S110]J9 Jsurede pJaengajes 0] paugdiso(q e

(ponunuod) 1y JAVS A81auy :8L¥T'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



'SAN[I0€) SuIdieyd aAey 03 Y Id SSE]A UO SUOIIe)S 3IIAIAS [[V <«
'SO[OIYDA POsSed[ .10 pauMO-3]e]1S dAISS 0] suonels guigieyd
Jo dunis 10y uerd dojaasap 03 uonyerrodsuel], Jo yusuntedaq
'S9IN0J 9W0IUl
MO[ Jo aderuadaad YySIy e YIIm S9IIUNUIWOI PUe S9IIUNW U0
PaAJaSIopUN Ul SI[IIYSA SUOISSIWD 019Z Sulfojdop uo AJLIOLI]
‘d[qe[reAe
aJe sjuswade[dal a[qep.olje a1aym {7 ()7 Ul ullIels SuUoISSIud
0.9Z 9( 0] S9[DIYdA 31e3S JO Sases[ pue saseydand saInbay
199]J snq JIaduassed d11109]9
SUOISSIWD 0.19Z % (0T e ajerado isnw VLGN :0%0Z ‘TE Joquadog «
JLI}O9[3-[[B ‘SUOISSIWD 0.I9Z
9 Isnuw sassnq jo aseyo.and pue sased| :0£0z ‘T Alenue( uruuidayg «
199} IL1129[3 9% QT 03 1ISAUO0D 03 V.LHIA SoIINbay

I9MO( 99.1]-U0q.Je) 0] Sasng pue SYINIJ, ‘sae)
JO uonIsuel], 3y} LIV 01 VY UY 9L} 'S

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



'Suorletado [red JysI| pue [red J93nuwuod
S1 JO SUOISSIWD uoqgded aonpat 03 uejd e do[oadp O3 VLN @

saseyo.nd A J10J wetdold a1egal JIoWNSU0I J1elS UIISIXa SAIP0o) e

"193B3.13 ST JaAdYIIYM ‘saoeds
dunyaed jJo Joquinu [B10] JO 94 G Uey) SSaf1ou Jo jods Sunjaed Aq auo I1Sed[le Sppy -
s3uIp[Ing [eIIUSPISS.L pUk [BIDI3W IO JO UOIIBAOUD.I
Jo[ew /uononisuod mau 1oj (saoeds gunjaed +(T yam) sjof sunted

Ul Suonels suidieyd A5 alinbad 03 9pod uipying 21els spuswly e

"Jyoes Aq USALIp

SS[IW JO JaquINU 9SeI9AR PUE SI[IIYA UOISSIWI-0.19Z pue pLIqAY ‘patamod-ses
Jo Jaqunu a3 A13S13a.4 91€1S WOJ ure3qo o3 sanifeddiunwi SMo[[e Juswpuswy -
'S92.IN0S [eUOISal ‘[edapa) ‘©1e1S WO0.1J 9OUBISISSE [BIOUBUL/SISOD 9pn[oul 03 Apnis -

‘SonLIOYINe JIsuen)
[BUOISa.1 pUE ‘SIOLIISIP [00YIS [euoIdal ‘sanijeddiunw Aq pases]
10 PaUMO SI[I1YaA AJL1129[9 03 sanntuniioddo uo Apnis e saaibay e

I9MOd 99.1,]-U0(.Je) 0] Sasng pue SHINIJ, ‘sie)
JO UONISUE.LL 3] 31BIS[IDY 01 VY UY 9L TS

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



'0Z20Z ‘T€ AN[ U0 SPUd UOISSOS 9AIB[SISO[ JUSLIND Y],

'2InJeugIs S1y J10J J0UISA0K) 33 03}

JU9S pue 2.In1e[SI39[ [[NJ 93 Aq U0 Pal0A aq p[hom Aay3
‘S[[I] [BUL} UO SNSUISUO0I YILdl 91euUaS pue asnoy ayr j| e

'9973IWIWIO0D 9JUSIJUO0D B 0] JUIS 9] U3} P[NOM [DIYM
‘S[[1q 9saya ssed pue ‘Ajipoua ‘dn aye] Aewt asnoy ayJ, e

*9SNOH 93 03 JUIS U3 dAeY S[[I( [eUl] 93.1Y] 9SAY], ®

e
sda)S 1XoN

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O



WO NI MMM
7SS0 SnasnydessejN ‘weylje
€0 NS ‘peoy SyeQ AJ[I0ABM /T

102X 00S6-+¥C (L19)
WOIPqM)UI)SWII|I
‘bsH ‘urdyswadg “JA AdIJJar

110BIUO0D ‘UONBULIOJUI 910W IO

*a21ApD [pb3] 20U S1 pUD 2.4NIVU Ul [D.413U3B S1 Uo1IDIU3Sa.Id S1y] ul uonpULIOful 3y,

uoneuLiojujy joejuo)

Od ‘MV1 ADg ks

2O


mailto:jbernstein@bck.com
http://www.bck.com/

The Commontvealth of Massachusetts

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

D.P.U. 18-116-A February 10, 2020

Petition of Towns of Aquinnah, Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Chilmark, Dennis,
Eastham, Edgartown, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Oak Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown,
Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, Wellfleet, West Tisbury, and Yarmouth, and Dukes County,
acting together as the Cape Light Compact JPE, pursuant to G.L. ¢. 25, § 21 for approval by
the Department of Public Utilities of its Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plan for 2019 through
2021.

ORDER REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION OF ACTIVE DEMAND REDUCTION
OFFERINGS BY CAPE LIGHT COMPACT JPE

APPEARANCES: Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq.
Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq.
BCK LAW, P.C.
271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, Massachusetts 02452
FOR: CAPE LIGHT COMPACT JPE
Petitioner

Maura Healey, Attorney General
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
By:  Donald W. Boecke

Joseph F. Dorfler

Assistant Attorneys General
Office of Ratepayer Advocacy
One Ashburton Place
Boston, Massachusetts 02108

Intervenor



D.P.U. 18-116-A

Page ii

Rachel Graham Evans, Esq.

Daniel Burstein, Esq.

Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources

100 Cambridge Street, Suite 1020

Boston, Massachusetts 02114

FOR: MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF

ENERGY RESOURCES
Intervenor

Stacey M. Donnelly, Esq.
Diana Chiang, Esq.
National Grid
40 Sylvan Road
Waltham, Massachusetts 02451
FOR: BOSTON GAS COMPANY AND COLONIAL
GAS COMPANY
Intervenor

John K. Habib, Esq.
Ashley S. Wagner, Esq.
Matthew C. Campbell, Esq.
Keegan Werlin LLP
99 High Street, 29" Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
FOR: NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY
Intervenor

Jerrold Oppenheim, Esq.

57 Middle Street

Gloucester, Massachusetts 01930

FOR: LOW-INCOME WEATHERIZATION AND

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM NETWORK
AND THE LOW-INCOME ENERGY
AFFORDABILITY NETWORK
Intervenors



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page iii

Caitlin Peale Sloan, Esq.
Amy Laura Cahn, Esq.
Conservation Law Foundation
62 Summer Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
FOR: CONSERVATION LAW FOUNDATION
Intervenor

Amy E. Boyd, Esq.
Acadia Center
31 Milk Street, Suite 501
Boston, Massachusetts 02109
FOR: ACADIA CENTER
Intervenor

Paul W. Gromer, Esq.
Paul Gromer, LLC
85 Merrimac Street, 3" Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02114
FOR: NORTHEAST ENERGY EFFICIENCY
COUNCIL
Intervenor

Laura S. Olton, Esq.
LSO Energy Advisors, LLC
38 Thackeray Road
Wellesley, Massachusetts 02481
FOR: POWEROPTIONS, INC.
Intervenor

Justin Davidson, Esq.
Massachusetts Association of Realtors
333 Wyman Street, Suite 200
Waltham, Massachusetts 02451
FOR: MASSACHUSETTS ASSOCIATION OF
REALTORS
Intervenor



D.P.U. 18-116-A

Robert A. Rio, Esq.
Associated Industries of Massachusetts
One Beacon Street, 16™ Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02109
FOR: ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES OF
MASSACHUSETTS

Limited Participant

Beren Argetsinger, Esq.

Keyes & Fox LLP

P.O. Box 166

Burdett, New York 14818
FOR: SUNRUN, INC.

Limited Participant

Page iv



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 1

L. INTRODUCTION AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On October 31, 2018, the towns of Aquinnah, Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster,
Chatham, Chilmark, Dennis, Eastham, Edgartown, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Oak
Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown, Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, Wellfleet, West Tisbury, and
Yarmouth, and Dukes County, acting together as the Cape Light Compact JPE (“Compact”),
along with the natural gas and electric distribution companies' (together, “Program
Administrators™), each filed a three-year energy efficiency plan with the Department of
Public Utilities (“Department™) for calendar years 2019 through 2021 (“Three-Year Plans”).?2

With some modifications, disallowances, and conditions, the Department approved each

Three-Year Plan on January 29, 2019. 2019-2021 Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plans,

D.P.U. 18-110 through D.P.U. 18-119, at 181 (2019) (*2019-2021 Three-Year Plans

Order”).
As part of its Three-Year Plan, the Compact sought to implement an active demand

reduction offering (Statewide Plan, Exh. 1, App. K - Cape Light Compact, at 4). The

The distribution companies acting as Program Administrators are Bay State Gas
Company, d/b/a Columbia Gas of Massachusetts; The Berkshire Gas Company;
Boston Gas Company and Colonial Gas Company, each d/b/a National Grid;
Fitchburg Gas and Electric Light Company, d/b/a Unitil; NSTAR Gas Company,
d/b/a Eversource Energy; Liberty Utilities (New England Natural Gas Company)
Corp., d/b/a Liberty Utilities; Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket
Electric Company, each d/b/a National Grid; and NSTAR Electric Company, d/b/a
Eversource Energy.

(%)

For a detailed procedural history of the underlying proceeding, refer to 2019-2021

Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plans, D.P.U. 18-110 through D.P.U. 18-119, at 1-4
(2019).



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 2

Department declined to approve the Compact’s proposed active demand reduction offering
(and related budget) until a final agreement was in place between the Compact and
NSTAR Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy (“NSTAR Electric”), the electric

distribution company serving the Compact’s customers. 2019-202]1 Three-Year Plans Order

at 129 & n.63, 138-139 & n.68 (citations omitted). The Department found that, without such
an agreement, it was unable to determine whether the Compact's proposed offerings
(including the proposed active demand reduction offerings, the statewide offerings, and any
Compact-specific enhancements) would undermine NSTAR Electric's obligation to provide

safe and reliable service to its distribution customers. 2019-2021 Three-Year Plans Order

at 138-139 (citations omitted).

The Department directed the Compact, on or before September 30, 2019, to file a
report with the Department outlining the status of its efforts to reach a final agreement with
NSTAR Electric regarding (1) all aspects of the coordination necessary for the Compact to
implement active demand reduction offerings in its service area and (2) how any costs related

to such coordination will be addressed. 2019-2021 Three-Year Plans Order at 139. The

Compact was to include a copy of any signed agreement with the filed report.

2019-2021 Three-Year Plans Order at 139. The Department stated it would then review the

agreement to determine if it adequately addresses distribution reliability concerns and whether

the proposed treatment of any related costs is reasonable. 2019-2021 Three-Year Plans

Order at 139.



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 3

On September 27, 2019, the Compact filed a report (“Report™) indicating it had
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (“Agreement™) with NSTAR Electric, effective
August 14, 2019, and intended “to govern the implementation, siting, and dispatch of
‘dispatchable assets’ (as such term is defined in the [Agreement]} by the Compact as part of
its active demand response?® energy efficiency programs” during the term of the Three-Year
Plan (i.e., through December 31, 2021) (Report at 2). In support of its filing, the Compact
submitted the following: (1) its Agreement with NSTAR Electric; (2) the testimony of
Margaret T. Downey, the Compact’s Administrator, as Exhibit Compact-13 (later revised on
November 19, 2019); (3) updated data tables, including revised proposed residential and
commercial and industrial (“C&I") active demand reduction program budgets for Department

approval, marked as Exhibit Compact-13(1); and (4) a revised active demand response

i Although the Agreement uses the term “active demand response,” the Department

refers to these programs as “active demand reduction” programs.
2019-2021 Three-Year Plans Order at 133.




D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 4

benefit-cost ratio model marked as Exhibit Compact-52.% In addition, the Compact responded
to sixteen information requests from the Department.?

II. SUMMARY OF PROPOSAL

The Agreement addresses the coordination with NSTAR Electric necessary to
implement the Compact’s active demand reduction offerings. In particular, the Agreement
addresses the following: (1) a process by which the Compact will submit interconnection
applications for dispatt.:hable assets for review by NSTAR Electric, which will have the
authority to refuse, for siting purposes, any dispatchable asset or block of dispatchable assets
where the installation is likely to adversely impact the operation, safety, or reliability of
NSTAR Electric's electric power system (Agreement, § 1.1.3); (2) the requirement that the
Compact comply with a dispatch plan for the dispatchable assets that is prepared by
NSTAR Electric (Agreement, § 1.2.1); (3) the requirement that the Compact use the same

vendors as NSTAR Electric to develop and implement a dispatch platform

The Compact had previously submitted an exhibit designated as Exhibit Compact-13;
therefore, the Department will refer to the testimony of Margaret T. Downey
submitted with the Report as “Downey Test.” and the updated data tables attached
thereto designated as Exhibit Compact-13(1) as “Downey Test., Att.” The
Department will refer to the revised testimony of Margaret T. Downey submitted on
November 19, 2019 as “Downey Test. (Rev.).” Finally, the revised active demand
response benefit-cost ratio model designated as Exhibit Compact-5a is the second
revision of this exhibit, therefore, the Department will refer to it as

“Exhibit Compact-5a (2™ Rev.).”

2 On its own motion, the Department moves the Compact’s responses to Information
Requests DPU-Compact 4-1 through DPU-Compact 4-5 and DPU-Compact 5-1
through DPU-Compact 5-11, filed on November 19, 2019 and December 17, 2019,
respectively, into the record in this phase of the proceeding.



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 5

(Agreement,§ 1.2.4); (4) that NSTAR Electric will have access to the Compact’s dispatch
platform and the ability to terminate a dispatch in the event of an emergency, an off-schedule
distribution system condition, or any other condition that, in NSTAR Electric's reasonable
opinion, will adversely impact the operation, safety, or reliability of the NSTAR Electric
power system (Agreement, § 1.2.5); and (5) that NSTAR Electric will review for approval
the Compact’s dispatch contracts entered into with customers receiving dispatchable assets or
funding for dispatchable assets through the implementation of the Compact’s Three-Year Plan
(Report at 2-3; Agreement, § 1.3.4).

Under the Agreement, the Compact it is responsible for the payment of all
coordination costs with NSTAR Electric (Agreement, §§ 1.2.3, 1.2.6, 1.3.2). These
coordination costs include the following: (1) all costs associated with development and
implementation of the dispatch platform (Agreement, § 1.2.3); (2) NSTAR Electric's vendor
costs and fees associated with the provision of access to the Compact’s dispatch platform
(Agreement, § 1.2.6); and (3) NSTAR Electric’s incremental costs to monitor and override,
as necessary, the dispatch of dispatchable assets implemented by the Compact (e.g.,
additional labor, incidental costs, software fees, vendor costs, or incremental fees) (Report
at 3; Agreement, § 1.3.2). The Compact estimates that it will incur approximately $20,000

in coordination costs per year in 2020 and 2021 (Exh. DPU-Compact4-4, at 2).5 The

The Compact states that NSTAR Electric was unable to provide it with an estimate of
anticipated coordination costs because “several variables could affect such costs”
(Exh. DPU-Compact 4-2). Instead, the Compact estimated the annual coordination
costs based on other costs billed to the Compact by NSTAR Electric and factors such
as anticipated staff hours, number of participating assets, and number of dispatches.



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 6

Compact proposes to treat these coordination costs as non-program-specific costs
(Exhs. DPU-Compact 4-4; DPU-Compact 5-7).

In addition to the Agreement, the Compact submitted revised proposed residential and
C&I active demand reduction program budgets. The Compact states that Department
approval of the proposed budgets will permit it to implement residential and C&I demand
reduction programs in 2020-2021 that are consistent with the demand reduction programs

being offered by the other Program Administrators (Report at 4, citing Three-Year Plans

Order at 139 n.68). The proposed budgets represent a net decrease of $9,581,979 (or

73 percent) from the active demand reduction program budgets originally proposed by the
Compact in its Three-Year Plan (Exh. DPU-Compact 4-4, at 2). The Compact proposes to
revise its active demand reduction program budgets to incorporate the following: (1) active
demand incentives consistent with the Department-approved statewide offerings; (2) updated
participation assumptions; (3) updated cost information from implementation vendors; and
(4) estimated NSTAR Electric coordination costs (Exhs. Downey Test. (Rev.) at 8-10;
DPU-Compact 4-3; DPU-Compact 4-4).

III.  ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS

The Department has recognized that active demand reduction offerings have the
potential to impact the local distribution system in a manner that is different from other

energy efficiency programs. Cape Light Compact, D.P.U. 17-84, at 21 (2018).

The Compact maintains that its estimate is reasonable and expected to be “adequate to
cover any [coordination] costs billed by NSTAR Electric” (Exh. DPU-Compact 4-2).



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 7

Accordingly, because the Compact is not an electric distribution company,’ the Department
has found that the Compact is required to coordinate with NSTAR Electric to ensure that any
proposed active demand reduction offerings will not adversely impact reliability of the local
distribution system. Three-Year Plans Order at 133, citing D.P.U. 17-84, at 21.

Consistent with the Department’s directives in the Three-Year Plans Order at 139, the
Compact filed a Report outlining its efforts to reach an agreement with NSTAR Electric and
attached the final, signed Agreement addressing the coordination necessary for it to
implement active demand reduction offerings in its service area. After review, the
Department finds that the Agreement, which governs the implementation, siting, and dispatch
of assets by the Compact as part of its active demand reduction energy efficiency programs
during the remainder of its current Three-Year Plan term (i.e., 2020 and 2021), adequately
addresses the distribution reliability concerns discussed in the Three-Year Plans Order. In
making this determination, the Department gives significant weight to NSTAR Electric’s
decision to enter into the Agreement as the company obligated to provide safe and reliable
electric distribution service in the Compact’s service area. Further, and importantly, the
Agreement gives NSTAR Electric access to the Compact’s dispatch platform and the

unilateral ability to terminate a dispatch in the event of any condition that, in

The Compact is the only energy efficiency Program Administrator that is not a natural
gas or electric distribution company. Rather, the Compact is a municipal aggregator
that has received Department approval to act as an energy efficiency Program
Administrator in its service area. See, e.g., Cape Light Compact, D.P.U. 15-166
(2016).



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 8

NSTAR Electric’s reasonable opinion, will adversely impact the operation, safety, or
reliability of NSTAR Electric's power system (Agreement, § 1.2.5).8

In addition, consistent with the Department's directives in Three-Year Plans Order

at 139, the Report includes the Compact's proposal regarding how costs related to active
demand reduction coordination with NSTAR Electric should be addressed.

2019-2021 Three-Year Plans Order at 139. Specifically, the Agreement provides that the

Compact will reimburse NSTAR Electric for all such coordination costs (Agreement,
§81.2.3, 1.2.6, 1.3.2). For cost-allocation purposes, the Compact proposes to treat the
coordination costs as non-program-specific and allocate them across all programs
(Exhs. DPU-Compact 4-4; DPU-Compact 5-7). The Compact maintains that its proposed
treatment of coordination costs is reasonable and consistent with how it allocates other costs
billed by NSTAR Electric (Report at 3-4).

Unlike other costs billed by NSTAR Electric that support the Compact’s ability to
administer energy efficiency programs generally, the coordination costs at issue here are
specific to the Compact’s active demand reduction programs. NSTAR Electric would not

incur these costs (and the Compact would not pay these costs) but for the Compact’s

The Department notes that the Compact will use the same third-party vendor as
NSTAR Electric to implement its dispatch platform. Nothing in this Order is intended
to affect NSTAR Electric’s ability to limit or terminate third-party access to its
systems. However, in the event that a limitation or termination of third-party access
hinders the Compact’s ability to implement its active demand reduction offerings,
NSTAR Electric shall give written notice to the Compact and the Department within
five business days of such limitation or termination.



D.P.U. i8-116-A Page 9

provision of active demand reduction programs in NSTAR Electric’s service territory.
Accordingly, the Department does not accept the Compact's proposed treatment of
coordination costs as non-program-specific. Instead, the Compact shall treat any coordination
costs related to active demand reduction as program-specific and allocate such costs to its
active demand reduction programs as set forth in Exhibit DPU-Compact 5-6. With this
revised allocation, the Department finds that the Compact’s proposal regarding the treatment
of costs related to its active demand reduction coordination with NSTAR Electric is

reasonable. 2019-2021 Three-Year Plans Order at 139.

Finally, with its required coordination Agreement with NSTAR Electric in place, the
Compact seeks Department approval of revised residential and C&l active demand reduction
budgets (Exh. Downey Test. (Rev.) at 8-10). In addition to the estimated coordination costs
with NSTAR Electric addressed above,? the revised budgets incorporate active demand
reduction incentives that are consistent with the Department-approved statewide offerings
(Exhs. Downey Test. (Rev.) at 8-10; DPU-Compact 4-3; DPU-Compact 4-4). Although the

total revised active demand reduction budget is significantly lower'® than the budget initially

The Department has some concern about the accuracy of the Compact's estimate of
annual coordination costs given the number of variables that could affect such costs,
particularly in the initial year of the Agreement (Exh. DPU-Compact 4-2).
Accordingly, the Compact shall clearly identify and describe all active demand
reduction coordination costs charged to its energy efficiency budget in its next Annual
Report and Term Report.

" The overall budget decrease is driven by the Compact’s decision to offer active
demand reduction incentives that are consistent with the Department-approved
statewide offerings (Exh. DPU-Compact 4-4, at 2).



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 10

proposed by the Compact in its Three-Year Plan, it includes significant increases in estimated
costs for the Compact’s interruptible load curtailment offering!! (Exhs. DPU-Compact4-4;
DPU-Compact 5-11).

After review, and in consideration of the findings above regarding the required
coordination with NSTAR Electric, the Department approves the Compact’s proposed
budgets for implementation in 2020-2021 of residential and C&I active demand reduction
programs that are consistent with the active demand reduction programs being offered by the
other Program Administrators (Exh. Downey Test., Att.). As with all energy efficiency
program costs, the Compact must demonstrate that all costs of its active demand reduction
programs were reasonable and prudently incurred at the time final cost recovery is sought.
G.L. c. 25, §§ 19, 20; 2016-2018 Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plans, D.P.U. 15-160

through D.P.U. 15-169, at 47 (2016), citing Fitchburg Gas and Electric Light Company,

D.P.U. 11-01/11-02, at 323 (2011); Boston Gas Company/Essex Gas Company/Colonial Gas

Company d/b/a National Grid, D.P.U. 10-55, at 434, 440-442 (2010); Boston Gas Company,

D.T.E. 03-40, at 140-141 (2003); New England Telephone and Telegraph Company,

D.P.U. 86-33-G at 101 (1989); Boston Edison Company, D.P.U. 1720, at 70-78 (1984);

In particular, the revised budget for the C&I interruptible load offering has increased
by $1,328,095 (or 275 percent) as compared to the budget for this offering proposed
by the Compact in its Three-Year Plan (Exh. DPU-Compact 5-11). The Compact
maintains that this increase is primarily due to updated participation assumptions
(Exh. DPU-Compact 5-11). Given the significant increase in estimated costs for the
Compact’s interruptible load curtailment offering, the Compact shall provide full and
complete documentation supporting the updated participation assumptions in its next
Annual Report.



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 11

Oxford Water Company, D.P.U. 1699, at 13 (1984). Failure to make this demonstration

will result in disallowance of such costs.!> See Three-Year Plans Order at 143.

IV. ORDER

Accordingly, afier due consideration, it is:

ORDERED: That the revised budgets for implementation in 2020-2021 of residential
and commercial and industrial demand response programs by the Towns of Aquinnah,
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Chilmark, Dennis, Eastham, Edgartown, Falmouth,
Harwich, Mashpee, Oak Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown, Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro,
Wellfleet, West Tisbury, and Yarmouth, and Dukes County, acting together as the Cape
Light Compact YPE, are APPROVED:; and it is

FURTHER ORDERED: That the Towns of Aquinnah, Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster,
Chatham, Chilmark, Dennis, Eastham, Edgartown, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Oak
Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown, Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, Wellfleet, West Tisbury, and

Yarmouth, and Dukes County, acting together as the Cape Light Compact JPE, and

ik Disallowed costs shall not be recovered through the Compact’s energy efficiency
surcharge.



D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 12

NSTAR Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy, shall comply with all other directives

contained in this Order.

By Order of the Department,

/sf
Matthew N. Nelson, Chair

/s/
Robert E. Hayden, Commissioner

s/
Cecile M. Fraser, Commissioner




D.P.U. 18-116-A Page 13

An appeal as to matters of law from any final decision, order or ruling of the Commission
may be taken to the Supreme Judicial Court by an aggrieved party in interest by the filing of
a written petition praying that the Order of the Commission be modified or set aside in whole
or in part. Such petition for appeal shall be filed with the Secretary of the Commission
within twenty days after the date of service of the decision, order or ruling of the
Commission, or within such further time as the Commission may allow upon request filed
prior to the expiration of the twenty days after the date of service of said decision, order or
ruling. Within ten days after such petition has been filed, the appealing party shall enter the
appeal in the Supreme Judicial Court sitting in Suffolk County by filing a copy thereof with
the Clerk of said Court. G.L. c. 25, § 5.



	ADPE104.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	MA State solar “incentives”
	Net metering
	DOER Solar Incentive Programs
	SMART Program
	SMART Incentive Structure
	Compensation Rates/Terms/Adders
	Who pays? Customers
	Summary
	Additional Resources

	ADPB35A.tmp
	Summary of �Massachusetts Climate Bills��
	Massachusetts Climate Bill Package
	���S.2477:  Overview
	S.2477:  Net Zero Emissions by 2050
	S.2477:  Carbon Pricing Mechanism
	S.2477:  Climate Policy Commission
	S.2477:  Energy Efficiency Impacts	
	S.2477: Miscellaneous Provisions
	S.2478:  Energy SAVE Act
	S.2478:  Energy SAVE Act (continued)
	���	��S.2476:  An Act to Accelerate the Transition of Cars, Trucks and Buses to Carbon-Free Power
	S.2476:  An Act to Accelerate the Transition of Cars, Trucks and Buses to Carbon-Free Power
	Next Steps
	Contact Information


